
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

RURAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
to be held on

WEDNESDAY, 23 JANUARY 2019
at

10.00 AM
in

STUDIO 1, GUILDHALL ARTS CENTRE, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Bob Sampson

Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth
Councillor Mrs Frances Cartwright
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown 
(Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Councillor Mrs Andrea Webster

Invited Cabinet Members
Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Deputy Leader
Councillor Nick Neilson, Cabinet Member for Housing
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail & Visitor Economy
Councillor Jacky Smith, Cabinet Member for Community, Health, Wellbeing & Skills

Support Officer:
Anita Eckersley

Tel:       01476 406517
E-mail:  a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2  MEMBERSHIP 

3  APOLOGIES 

4  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at 
the meeting.

mailto:a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk


5  ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 21 NOVEMBER 2018 
(Pages 3 - 10)

6  UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

7  TRANSFORMATION AND INNOVATION REPORT (Pages 11 - 18)

Report of The Deputy Leader.

8  UPDATE FROM THE ARMED FORCES OFFICER (Pages 19 - 29)

Report of the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Chairman.

9  BOURNE CICLE FESTIVAL 

To receive a presentation.

10  UPDATE ON THE LONELINESS WORKSHOP 

11  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT 



MEETING OF THE
RURAL OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 21 NOVEMBER 
2018, 10.00 AM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Bob Sampson (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth
Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Councillor Mrs Andrea Webster

OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Ray Wootten

OFFICERS
Assistant Chief Executive (Lee Sirdifield)
Business Knowledge and Innovation Officer (Heather Green)
Head of Visitor Economy (Andrew Norman)
Head of Arts (Michael Cross)
Head of Governance (Ben Bix)

19. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Rosemary Kaberry-
Brown.

20. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
No interests were disclosed.

21. ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 19 SEPTEMBER 2018
The Action Notes from the 19 September 2018 were noted.

22. UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The following outcomes of previous action points were noted:

 An update in respect of the creation of a potential programme aimed at 
supporting the delivery of cultural events in rural areas would be provided 
by the Head of Arts at this meeting.

 A presentation from the Armed Forces Officer had been given at the All 
Councillor Briefing held on Monday 19 November 2018.

3

Agenda Item 5



 The Government had announced further funding for the delivery of 
Broadband in rural areas. The detail of how BDUK would deliver this was 
awaited.

 An update from the Head of Visitor Economy in respect of the trailer would 
be provided at this meeting.

 Loneliness – This was an item on the agenda for today’s meeting.

Cultural Events in Rural Areas
The Head of Arts was in attendance to provide an update on the work 
programme that was being created to support the delivery of cultural events in 
rural areas. The Committee was informed that the programme would link into 
the Cultural Strategy. Stakeholder events were being planned in the four 
market towns and would include public consultation and also look at what 
activities were currently available throughout the District.  The aim was to gain 
a better understanding of the baseline and look at what events rural villages 
wanted.

Reference was made to the Live and Local Scheme in Lincolnshire which was 
supported by the Council and delivered events throughout the District. A 
variety of entertainment, such as musicians, poets, dancers and singers was 
being provided by the scheme. Quite a number of villages already engaged 
directly with the Live and Local Scheme.

Village committees and parish councils had been contacted and  a number of 
issues had been highlighted around venues/capacity, temporary notices and 
insurance when delivering events. Ways of providing guidance, support and 
streamlining some of the issues were being considered. It was noted that 
Swayfield had formed their own company outside the Live and Local Scheme 
and highlighting this as an exemplar was being considered.

Other issues were accessibility for people in more remote areas and whether 
transport could be provided for some of the main events in the District like 
Gravity Fields and the Georgian Festival in Stamford.

Reference was made to the Annual Summer Festival held in Castle Bytham 
and the plans the village had to hold a Heritage Project in 2021.  Discussions 
were taking place on ways the Council might be able to provide help and 
support for both events with representatives from the village.  

The Head of Arts referred to other forthcoming events such as the Bourne 
CiCLE Classic Festival over the weekend of 31 August and 1 September 2019 
and early plans to include associated arts activities along the route. Also, 
Imagineer Productions from Coventry had been involved at this years’ Gravity 
Fields event, providing the introduction to a 2019 project entitled “Bridge.” 
Whilst the project would ultimately be presented in Grantham it is hoped to 

4



use the ‘Bridge-building’ theme of the work to provide workshops and other 
related events across the District as part of promoting the project to residents.  

The Committee was informed that conversations taking place within InvestSK 
always considered how an event could have the maximum reach, use best 
practice and the importance of ensuring each activity was appropriate for the 
venue or location.

The Chairman thanked the Head of Arts for his concise and full report and 
invited Members to ask questions.

Discussions took place on insurance costs for each event, whether the 
Council would be in a position to underwrite or seek an insurance that covered 
events for a whole year.  Venue availability, appropriateness of each venue for 
an event, the types of venues available in rural areas such as schools, 
community halls, barns, shops, council buildings, churches and open sided 
trailers.  Also mentioned was venue availability for scouts, guides and 
brownies and whether they would be included in the consultation process.

A Member queried what type of events the Live and Local Scheme delivered 
and the Head of Arts noted he would arrange for a list to be circulated.

A query was raised on whether events in villages were subsidised or 
dependent on ticket sales. It was noted that ticket sales was a crucial aspect 
but discussions were taking place with Lincolnshire Community Volunteer 
Service in respect of what grants or funding was available to support individual 
events.

When asked about the RAF100 events it was noted that the Head of Visitor 
Economy would be better placed to provide an update on this and the 
background to the Bourne CiCLE Festival.

In response to a Member’s query about Member involvement, the Head of 
Arts commented that the Cultural Strategy would require input from Members 
and an invitation would be issued to Members for the events in the New Year.

Action point: 

That the Head of Arts forwards a list of the Live and Local events to 
Members of the Committee.

The Head of Visitor Economy referred to the RAF100 events and provided the 
Committee with an update.  He noted the events that had taken place during 
the year which had been well attended and received.

 Four guided tours of St Vincent’s Hall, the former Bomber Command HQ in 
Grantham

5



 Guided walks around Twyford Wood near Colsterworth formerly RAF North 
Witham

 British Model Flying Association, Annual British National Model Flying 
Championships with an RAF100 Vintage Aircraft theme at RAF Barkston

 Caythorpe walks culminating at St Vincent’s Church the spiritual home of 
WWII airborne forces and the 216 squadron Signals Squadron

 An Exhibition at Grantham Museum highlighting Captain Albert Ball, VC 
DSO a WWI flying ace and his violin along with Heroines of the home front 
and Barnes Wallis (Bouncing Bomb)

 An RAF100 Commemorative Concert in St Wulfram’s featuring the 
Cranwell Military Wives Choir and the RAF Orchestra featuring the playing 
of Captain Albert Ball’s violin

Reference was made to forthcoming anniversaries and ways of maintaining 
visitor interest.  The 70th Anniversary of the D-Day Landings would take place 
in 2019. Following the invitation to the German President to lay a wreath 
alongside the Queen at the Remembrance Service at the Cenotaph, 
consideration was being given to creating a guided route of places German 
Prisoners of War were billeted in the District during WWII. Other suggestions 
were visits to Fulbeck Hall to remember the involvement with Operation 
Market Garden during WWII; logging the roadside memorials of 
Commonwealth and British pilots who crashed during the war. 

A Member queried whether recognition would be given to civilians who lost 
their lives during the war in and around Grantham and whether visits to care 
and residential homes would be undertaken.

In conclusion the Head of Arts acknowledged that these areas were on an 
extensive list but collaborative working and viability assessments would need 
to be taken into account when trying to join up all the dots.

The Rural Engagement Vehicle

The Head of Visitor Economy referred to the previous meeting when the 
Committee had been informed the trailer would visit the 16 largest villages in 
the District.  This had now been reviewed due to the dimensions of the trailer 
and accessibility to remote areas. The trailer required a firm, level, hard 
standing base on which to be deployed and in some cases would be too big to 
be deployed at some of the proposed villages.

There had around 21 events arranged since the trailer had been procured 
these included attendance at the Lincolnshire, Nottinghamshire and Leicester 
County shows. A report on the footfall was anticipated around mid-December. 
Two events had been cancelled due the unfortunate incapacity of driver. The 

6



Committee was informed that although InvestSK would be responsible for the 
booking and delivery of the trailer but would not be responsible for arranging 
community engagement events.  Guidance from the Director of Growth was 
being sought on who would be responsible for the community engagement 
aspect. 
     
It was noted that around 39 events had been booked for the forthcoming year 
and there had been a 49% increase in google activity which did not include 
the figures for Gravity Fields.

Members requested that they receive a breakdown of the cost for each event 
including fuel, labour and the costs for WiFi connection for the trailer. In 
response to a query about where the trailer was kept when not in use it was 
noted that it was kept at North Witham at no additional cost.

In respect of the Bourne CiCLE Festival in 2019, the Committee was informed 
there would be only one road closure, the rest of the course would be on a 
rolling closure programme.  The festival would see professional road races for 
men and woman covering varying distances along with time trials and circuits 
for happy cycling amateurs. 

Discussion took place on who made the decision for a cycle event in Bourne 
and whether any other suggestions had been provided. It was noted that a 
number of suggestions for events had been submitted to Bourne Town 
Council and a list of these could be circulated to Members. The Council and 
InvestSK were working with Bourne Town Council to ensure the event had full 
support.  

A further query was raised on how this event would impact on agricultural 
vehicles and it was noted that the roads outside Bourne would be on a rolling 
closure but would be open again once the peloton had passed.  There would 
be an advertising campaign to highlight the details of the event nearer the 
time.

Action Points:
 

a) The Committee to be sent a list of the events put forward for 
consideration by Bourne Town Council and,

b) A breakdown of the trailer costs to include fuel, labour and the costs for 
WiFi connection for the trailer.   

23. WORK PLAN: SERVICES
The Assistant Chief Executive referred to the workshop that took place to 
determine the work plan for the year ahead.  He noted that the second priority 
on the plan had been to better understand the services delivered by the 
Council within the district.  

7



Reference was made to the transformation programme the Council was 
undergoing to improve self-service availability and resident’s access to 
information. New technologies were being deployed to increase the availability 
of information and accessibility. 

The transformation programme contained a number of themes, digitisation; 
service reviews; Intelligent automation; predictive analytics and operational 
improvements. These themes would be used ensure that service provision 
met customer needs.  

As a way forward it was suggested that in order to fully understand the 
services offered to rural areas the Committee could choose to hear from a 
range of service areas or request specific items within the transformation plan. 
The Deputy Leader had mentioned that he would be happy to attend to give a 
presentation on the transformation programme at a future meeting.

Further clarification was provided on the definition for each of the themes:

Digitisation:  For customers to carry out transactions on line

Intelligent Automation: The use of emerging technologies that would speed up  
transaction process

Predictive analytics:     To make better use of data to improve performance 
and identify trends that would enable better planning 
of services

Operational improvements: This would be informed by the above themes 
along with outcomes from relevant Committees.

Discussions took place on the changes the Council was going through.  
Members also mentioned the difficulties they were experiencing trying to 
locate the correct person or department regarding queries they had. Members 
requested that a definitive list of departments and contacts be provided 
together with a site map.  A request was also made for more detailed 
clarification of the above themes and how they related to each service 
provided by the Council.

Further discussion took place on the detail of the scoping, resource 
implications and the delivery of services taking into account that the Council 
was a public service and had to provide for the whole community.

Members queried how people without computers or any form of technology 
would be able to access the Council and its’ services. The Committee also 
commented on the increase in income variations and the impact this might 
have on residents accessibility when trying to contact the Council; clarification 
on responsibility for both the Council and Lincolnshire County Council in 
respect of specific work areas such as roads and street lighting; how issues 

8



raised by parish councils were dealt with, how they were forwarded to 
Lincolnshire County Council and the remit and responsibilities of the new 
grounds maintenance company. A further issue mentioned was the 
communication and the provision of progress and updates between 
Councillors and officers.

In conclusion, the Chairman noted the amount of work being requested but 
commented that the Committee would initially prefer to receive a report 
providing more detail on the transformation plans and how this would impact 
on ease of understanding and delivery of customers accessing services.

Action points: 

a) That Members are provided with a definitive list of departments, contact 
details and site map of the location of officers/departments.

b) That at the meeting of the Committee in January 2019 detailed reports are 
provided covering the following areas: 

i. Clarification of how the themes would relate to each service.

ii. A report detailing the transformation plans and the intention of new 
companies owned by the Council. 

24. LONELINESS
The Chairman referred to the previous meeting of the Committee when the 
Cabinet Member for Communities, Health, Wellbeing and Skills spoke about 
tackling loneliness and social exclusion.  The Committee had agreed that a 
joint workshop with the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee should be arranged. The Business Knowledge and Innovation 
Officer was in attendance to provide an update.

The Business Knowledge and Innovation Officer noted that a further meeting 
with the Cabinet Member for Communities, Health, Wellbeing and Skills had 
taken place. The Cabinet Member felt that the workshop should be open to all 
Councillors along with representatives from outside bodies and organisations 
who dealt with the issues of loneliness and social exclusion. The Committee 
was being asked for further guidance on how they wanted to take this forward 
as they would be the host Committee and who they felt should be invited to 
attend.  

The Committee commented that loneliness did not just relate to older or 
disabled people, but affected people of all ages and gender and from all areas 
of life so it was important to ensure that organisations dealing with a range of 
people should be invited. Suggestions put forward were representatives from: 
the Citizens Advice Bureau, the Samaritans, youth organisations, colleges; the 
Armed Forces Officer, Lincolnshire Social Services, Housing Associations; 

9



Voluntary organisations; departments within the Council, PALS, GPs, parish 
councils, Grantham Passage and the Jubilee Centre. 

Further discussion also took place around social prescribing and whether 
there was a local representative; that a number of the empty shops in the 
District could potentially be used for smaller communal meet ups; that some 
shops had been used as a toy bank; funding issues and access to grants for 
smaller social groups; types of social events such as walking groups; resource 
implications and how these could be filled.

The workshop would be a one off brainstorming event that would facilitate the 
opportunity to ascertain types of provision, where there were gaps and ways 
of communicating and engaging with different areas and communities within 
the District. A Member queried whether it would be appropriate to invite 
individuals with experience of loneliness.  

Councillor Ray Wootten was in attendance to ask the Committee how the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee could help.  
Reference was made to information and data profiles for each of the Wards 
that had been provided by the Chairman of the Lincolnshire Health and 
Wellbeing Board and the representative from the Public Health Division for 
North and South Kesteven District Councils at a meeting of the Communities 
and Wellbeing OSC that took place in July 2018.  

The Chairman, welcomed the input from Councillor Ray Wootten and looked 
forward to welcoming Members of the Communities and Wellbeing OSC to the 
Workshop.  He also confirmed that the data profiles and other information 
would be useful in the preparations for the workshop.  A scoping document 
had to be prepared and the Chairman and Cllr Wootten would make 
themselves available for officers between now and the workshop date which 
would need to be arranged in the New Year.

Action point: 

a) That the Committee receives the data profiles and other health 
information.

b) That the Business Knowledge and Innovation Officer prepares and 
arranges a workshop to consider the issues around loneliness.

25. CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting closed at 12.10pm.

10



 

 

 
 
 
 

RURAL OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 
The Deputy Leader of the Council 

 
Report to: 
 
Date: 
 
Subject: 

Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
23 January 2019 
 
Services, Transformation and Change (ACEX011) 

 

Decision 

Proposal: 

For Information  

Relevant 

Cabinet 

Member: 

Councillor Kelham Cooke 

The Deputy Leader of the Council 

 

 

Report author: 

 

 

 

Reviewed by: 

 

 

 

Signed off by: 

 

 

 

Approved for 

publication: 

 

Heather Green, Business Knowledge and Innovation Officer 

Email: h.green@southkesteven.gov.uk Tel: 01476 406525  

Date: 4 January 2019 

 

Lee Sirdifield, Assistant Chief Executive 

Email: l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk Tel: 01476 406524 

Date: 7 January 2019 

 

Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth 

Email: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk Tel 01476 406162 

Date: 7 January 2019 

 

Councillor Kelham Cooke 

The Deputy Leader of the Council 

Email: Kelham.cooke@southkesteven.gov.uk Tel: 01476 406401 

Date: 8 January 2019 

 

SUMMARY 
This paper outlines the work completed to date to modernise the way in which services 
are provided. It also sets out the transformation plans for the future and how the Council 
will continue to innovate to improve access and quality of service for customers.  

11

Agenda Item 7

mailto:h.green@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:Kelham.cooke@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the content of 
the report and support the ongoing transformation journey.  
 

 
1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT 
 
1.1 At the meeting on 21 November 2018 it was requested by the Rural Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee that a report be provided that explores further the 
transformational changes that have been made to services as well as items for 
future innovation and transformation.  

 
1.2 The work carried out to date has explored the use of future technologies to ensure 

that inclusive and accessible services are delivered. It is the intention that the same 
approach is followed for the following five themes:  

 

 Digitisation:  is about more work being undertaken online.  Enabling customers 
to transact with us in a wider capacity and at a time that suits them, which is an 
improvement to the service currently offered. This work, combined with the 
implementation of other technologies such as intelligent automation, will result in 
the freeing-up of staff to add value and better support customers who need a 
higher level of assistance. This work is not about wanting to switch off more 
traditional routes of communication, but making improvements and deploying 
staff more effectively.  

 

 Intelligent Automation: is about enabling improvements to the quality of the 
work completed. It focuses on enabling technology to undertake high volume, 
repetitive work where mistakes can often creep in when processes are manually 
completed. It will also enable transactional processes to be completed more 
quickly.  

 

 Predictive analytics: will enable the Council to identify new trends based on 
data that is collected through the course of normal business.  This will enable 
better planning of services and staffing taking into account seasonal 
requirements such as green waste collections and council tax billing. 

 

 Operational improvements: would be informed by results from the above areas, 
along with input and recommendations from relevant Committees.  

 

 Service reviews: will fundamentally challenge how services are provided by the 
Council. As an example, the reviews will consider delivery methods, technologies 
and the efficiency of processes. 

 
1.3 The world is changing at an ever-increasing rate, as are the expectations of the 

residents and businesses that the Council serves. It is important that the Council 
continues to innovate and improve the way that services are delivered to reflect and 
respond to the operating environment. The changing world will see: 

 

 By 2020, the existence of 50 billion internet connected things, for example TV’s, 
fridges, smart home technologies, pacemakers etc.  

 By 2025, digital natives accounting for over 50% of the global workforce. These 
are individuals that have only ever known the use of digital technology. 

12



 

 

 By 2050, increased automation, with up to 50% of today’s jobs are being 
automated.  

 
Achievements to date  
 
1.4 Lightbox is the Council’s research, design and innovation bureau.  It was set up to 

develop and test new ideas in relation to how the Council works and operates. It 
has been fully staffed and functioning since April 2018. This team has been 
instrumental in developing the future change and transformation plans. 

 
1.5 The Council has streamlined its Transformation and Organisation Development 

teams, bringing them under the same management reporting line as Lightbox.  This 
change in reporting lines has resulted in greater integration of transformational 
change into the HR function to ensure an appropriate mix of skills and expertise.  It 
is recognised that whilst technology can be used to transform a service, there is a 
need to understand the impact on people – whether customers or employees of the 
Council. The Change and OD team is headed up by Vicky Brackenbury and is 
targeted around project delivery, performance management and organisational 
development.   

 
1.6 Lightbox and the Change Team have been involved with several initiatives to date:  

 

 A training centre prototype:  Traditionally when training has been required, the 
Council looks to external providers.  This involves not only training costs, but 
travel and time costs too.  Rather than automatically sending staff externally, the 
Council is trialling the hosting of training in-house which affords the opportunity 
to sell spaces to other organisations and generate additional income.  The aim of 
the trial is to ascertain the financial viability and effectiveness of this approach. 
The money generated from external sales of the training spaces is being returned 
to the Council’s training budget. The trial is due to end in March 2019 and the 
results will be evaluated.   

 

 BoxEY: A collaboration with Ernst & Young (who operate as EY).  EY is one of 
the recognised "Big Four" accounting firms.  We have formed a joint team with 
EY to bring our experience of the public sector and their experience and 
knowledge of emerging technologies together to introduce Intelligent Automation 
to South Kesteven. The aim is to speed up the transactional, high volume and 
repetitive processes, which will free up staff to work with customers who need 
additional assistance and add value in other areas.   

 

 Live Performance Dashboards and Predictive Analytics: The Council is 
working to improve performance reporting data and introduce predictive 
analytics. Currently performance data is subject to varying time lags and therefore 
is an “after the event” view. The work will provide real time performance data 
enabling the organisation to react quicker to changes in customer demand and 
enable managers to be more flexible regarding real time staffing requirements.  
This new data and the potential ability to interrogate systems will also enable 
officers to identify trends and plan the future delivery of services. 

 
 
 
 

13



 

 

1.7 Other areas of transformation and innovation within the authority:  
 

 LotterySK: The local lottery is proving to be a great success; the lottery has 
already had one jackpot winner who has received £25,000. Since its launch the 
lottery has seen over 1,000 people playing and helping to raise funds for good 
causes and the community fund.  So far there are over 70 good causes benefiting, 
with more in the pipeline to be signed up. The full list of charities and good causes 
can be seen at www.lotterysk.co.uk/support/find-a-good-cause. This also 
provides further information on the number of tickets sold to date.  

 

 Agile working – IT rollout: The Agile roll out has now completed a period of 
laptop and software application testing by the Chameleon group to gain full user 
experience feedback across a wide range of services. This gained a large amount 
of positive response with the agility really being welcomed. Any issues regarding 
software applications are currently being addressed and the roll out schedule is 
being planned for the first tranche of users.  

 

 New Corporate Strategy: This was rolled out in May after substantial staff input. 
The strategy was developed by and incorporated feedback from both the staff 
survey carried out in 2017 and subsequent sessions to discuss the organisation 
we want to become.  This work was used to underpin the behaviours outlined 
within the strategy.  

 

 Increased social media and online demand: The Council has a website as well 
as active Twitter and Facebook pages. Over the last year we have seen a 78.5% 
increase in website visitors, which has equated to 383,393 new usages of our 
site. 

 
Twitter has reached the of milestone 6,700 active followers, which is an increase 
of 611 over the last 12 months. During the snowy period in March 2018 our tweets 
were seen by 40,000 people. Recently the Communications Team were involved 
with the RAF100 concert in St Wulfram’s Church. This included using two 
promotional films and both Twitter and Facebook advertising and promotion, 
which reached an audience of over 20,000 readers.  
 
Overall, the authority has experienced a marked increase in the usage of the 
website and online connectivity. These statistics are particularly important as it 
demonstrates that the Council needs to cater for those residents who expect 
online communications and services, as well as those residents who prefer 
traditional methods of communication.  

 
Transforming how the organisation works  
 
1.8 Whilst the achievements to date have provided a good base to work from, the 

Council is continuing to progress it’s transformational and innovation ideas to unlock 
capacity and put resources to better use.   

 
1.9 Savings and service improvement costs were included within Budget papers 

considered on 10 January 2019 and include:  
 

 Telephony review:  A review of the customer service telephony offer has been 
completed and the improvement actions that are being planned include: 

14

http://www.lotterysk.co.uk/support/find-a-good-cause


 

 

 
-  Improving the navigation of the interactive (IVR) system by reviewing the current 

wording for the options that are not being found by customers. 
-  Exploring the longer term options available for a voice activated IVR, which allows 

customers to say a few key words or request an officer directly. 
 

 Service reviews: The Change team is working closely with Service Heads to 
review and challenge current service provision.  To ensure that all aspects are 
reviewed including delivery, technology and whether there are further areas of 
efficiency that can be considered.  

 

 Clarity of Services for members – The Communications team are putting 
together a “Who’s who” with photographs of the senior team and what areas they 
are responsible for to enable members to approach the correct person either face 
to face or by email and telephone. A draft version of this document will be 
available for circulation at the meeting 

 
1.10 Working as a joint team with EY the Council has undertaken an assessment of service 

transactions based upon human input, pace of work and the innovation capability that 
would enable us to use intelligent automation technologies. Over 90 processes were 
reviewed with the potential for automation being considered. An example of the 
transactions, both internal and external, that have automation potential are:  
 

o Reconciliations  
o Application forms  
o Change forms 
o Material control 
o Invoicing 

 
1.11 The intelligent automation process will not simply see the current work processes be 

automated. A review of the process will be completed to identify opportunities to 
streamline activities and increase efficiency, before the automation technology is 
applied to it. Figure 1 provides an indicative example of how a process could move 
from an ‘as is’ position to the ‘to be’ solution. 

 
Figure 1 Indicative Example of ‘As Is’ to ‘To Be’. 

 

15



 

 

     
  
1.12 Work is underway to implement and make use of live performance reporting and 

predictive analytics. Once a prototype solution is developed within Customer 
Services, Revenues and Benefits, the feedback from these services will be used to 
review the effectiveness of the solution with a view to extending it across the 
organisation.   

 
1.13 The dashboards will present live information and automatically update. The data 

contained within them can be explored and presented in a range of formats, enabling 
Officers to more accurately predict and respond to customer demand. 

 
1.14 It is also possible to utilise predictive analytics within the dashboards. This effectively 

enables Officers to model different scenarios to better understand the impact of any 
changes which could be made. For example, the impact of a change in resource 
levels or a shift in demand from one access channel to another. 

 
A commercially minded Council  
 
1.15 The Council has also formed three companies to extend both commercial reach and 

learning:  
 

 InvestSK: This is South Kesteven District Council’s economic growth and 
regeneration company. Established in June 2018 as a company limited by 
guarantee with its sole member being South Kesteven District Council. 

 
Responsible for leading South Kesteven’s ambitious growth agenda, InvestSK 
works to support local businesses to grow, drives new inward investment to the 
area, boosts the arts, heritage, town centre and visitor economy offers, and 
enhances the skills of the district’s future workforce. 

 
InvestSK’s work is focused on: 
o Creating new jobs by supporting local businesses to grow and promoting the 

district to attract new commercial inward investment 
o Leading the district’s skills agenda to recruit, retain and grow our local talent. A 

skilled workforce that meets business needs is crucial for economic growth: 
increasing prosperity by giving companies the tools they need to grow which 
creates employment opportunities for local residents 

o Delivering the district’s cultural strategy, which encompasses the following four 
pillars: heritage, the arts, sport and the sciences. The aim is to enhance and 
support economic growth, ensure an entertaining cultural offer, encourage 
learning and participation and enrich the lives of residents.  

o Supporting and delivering heritage regeneration across the district. Heritage is 
an exceptionally powerful tool for regeneration - it plays a key role in place 
making, supporting cultural identity, increasing community cohesion and 
creating an atmosphere in which people want to live and work, and in which 

16



 

 

businesses thrive. Working with SKDC, businesses, civic and community 
groups, InvestSK is unlocking the potential of heritage to generate growth. 
Projects range from the development of a heritage quarter within Grantham, to 
supporting local communities to celebrate, interpret, access and regenerate their 
heritage. 

 
o Delivering South Kesteven’s aspirations to enhance the district’s four market 

towns, to grow the retail offer and boost the local economies. 
o Delivering South Kesteven’s visitor economy strategy – promoting the district as 

great place to visit, explore and enjoy – both for local residents and visitors 
outside of the district. The mission of the visitor economy team is to provide 
overarching marketing activity, campaign planning and support to enable the 
stakeholders in the district to flourish and to reach a far wider market than one 
they could reasonably hope to reach through their own endeavours. 

 

 EnvironmentSK: From 1 March 2019, all grounds maintenance work will be 
delivered by this newly formed private company wholly-owned by the council. The 
company will cover all the services currently provided under the Glendale contract 
which includes: 

 
o Maintenance of formal public spaces, parks, cemeteries, sports pitches and 

playing fields 
o Maintenance of all closed churchyards and amenity grassed areas on open 

spaces 
o Attendance duties and marking out of sports facilities and pitches 
o Weed control on council-owned sites 
o Maintenance of council-owned housing estates and supported council house 

gardens 
o Winter salting of car parks and supported housing schemes 

 

 DeliverSK:  Will be a co-investment partnership with a private company, paving 
the way for large-scale development and regeneration projects from start to finish.  
The Council will use the new partner’s expertise in managing and funding large-
scale developments. Potential projects could include housing developments, 
including social and affordable homes; office and employment space; leisure 
facilities; and mixed-use regeneration schemes.  DeliverSK will complement the 
work of InvestSK.  

 

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
2.1 As an authority the Council needs to ensure that the services offered are the best 

value and meets the needs of our residents   A range of options were considered 
through the review work completed with EY and the research completed by 
Lightbox. The appropriate options are contained within this report. 

   
3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The implementation of the change and transformation plans will see the Change 

Team working with Officers across the organisation. It will also see resources being 
utilised from EY. The companies highlighted above are resourced in accordance 
with their budgetary provision.  
 
 

17



 

 

4. RISK AND MITIGATION  
 
4.1  Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 

included in the table below: 
 

Category Risk Action / Controls 

Technological changes 
 

The technology being considered is capable of 
updates and upgrading to protect our longer term 
position.  

Cyber  
 

The technology currently under consideration is 
for use within our existing systems and will 
therefore not add another layer of risk for external 
breaches.  

 
5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 

etc.) 
 
5.1 There are no foreseen issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding 

resulting from this report. Any issues that do arise relating to individual items will be 
address as required. 

 
6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 None 
 
7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 
7.1  The funding of the Lightbox resources was agreed by Council as part of an “invest 

to save initiative” with the primary aim of transforming services and processes and 
reducing costs. The indicative budgets for the forthcoming year includes a 
transformation target saving of £200k that will be delivered utilising the tools and 
techniques that are detailed in the report. 

 
8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
8.1 There are no legal or democratic implications as a result of this report. 
 
9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES  
 
9.1 None  
 
10.  APPENDICES 
 
10.1 None 
 
11.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  
11.1 http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21782/ACEX%20008%20-

%20Rural%20OSC%20-%20Services%20-%20November%202018.pdf 

18

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21782/ACEX%20008%20-
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21782/ACEX%20008%20-


 

 

 
 

RURAL OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 

Report of: Councillor Bob Sampson 
Chairman of Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 
Report to: 
 
Date: 
 
Subject: 

Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
23 January 2019 
 
Armed Forces Discount Card (ACEX009) 

 

Decision 
Proposal: 

Non-Key Decision 

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member: 

 

Councillor Nick Neilson  
Cabinet Member for Housing  

 
Report author: 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
 
Signed off by: 
 
 
 
 
Approved for 
publication: 

 
Michelle Woolman-Lane, Armed Forces Officer 
E-mail: MWoolman-Lane@rutland.gov.uk 
Tel: 01572 720940 (ext 8377)       
Date: 20 December 2018 
 
Heather Green, Business Knowledge and Innovation Officer 
E-mail: h.green@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Tel: 01476 406525 
Date: 04 January 2019 
 
Lee Sirdifield, Assistant Chief Executive 
E-mail: l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk   
Tel:   01476 406524 
Date: 10 January 2019 
 
Councillor Bob Sampson, Chairman of Rural Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
E-mail: bob.sampson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 11 January 2019 

 

SUMMARY 
The Armed Forces Covenant is a promise from the nation to those who serve or who 
have served and their families. It states that we will do all we can to ensure they are 
treated fairly and not disadvantaged in their day-to-day lives. The Armed Forces 
Covenant relies on the people, communities, and businesses of the UK to actively 
support it in order to make a difference 
 
As a recognition of this, South Kesteven District Council are considering the viability of 
joining other Council’s in offering an Armed Forces Discount Card.  

19

Agenda Item 8

mailto:MWoolman-Lane@rutland.gov.uk
mailto:h.green@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:bob.sampson@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that: 
 
The Committee recommends to the Cabinet Member for Housing that South Kesteven 
District Council introduce an Armed Forces Discount Card scheme as set out in appendix 
1 of this report.  
 

 
1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT 
 
1.1 South Kesteven District Council is working with Rutland County Council and 

Harborough District Council to respond to the promise set out within the Armed 
Forces Covenant to ensure that those who served or have served in the Armed 
Forces and their families are treated fairly and are not disadvantaged by their 
service. The role of Armed Forces Officer was created to ensure that each Council 
has sufficient and effective support in place. 
 

1.2 The Armed Forces officer was instrumental in bringing an Armed Forces Discount 
scheme to fruition within Rutland County Council. South Kesteven District Council 
could benefit greatly from her knowledge and learning should the committee wish 
to introduce a similar scheme within the district.  
 

1.3 The aim of the scheme is to increase footfall and expenditure within the local area 
and businesses, as well as improving understanding of, and the links to, our 
veteran and dispersed serving communities.  
 

1.4 Rutland County Council successfully launched their discount scheme in 2017 to 
the serving population (Kendrew & St Georges Barracks) who live within their 
district. A second iteration of the scheme was later introduced, extending 
membership to local veterans and the wider Armed Forces community such as 
Reservists, Dispersed personnel and Widows living within their district. The extent 
of the discount or incentive available is determined by the participating outlet. 

 

2. THE SCHEME FOR SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 

2.1 South Kesteven currently has one operational military base, the Prince William of 
Gloucester Barracks in Grantham. However, there are a number of serving 
personnel living within the district serving at military bases positioned outside of 
the South Kesteven border.  There are the Rutland Barracks (Kendrew and St 
Georges), Wittering to the south of Stamford and others to the East of Grantham 
(such as RAF Cranwell). There is also a ‘strong’ reservist community.  
 

2.2 As a county Lincolnshire has a rich RAF heritage, with South Kesteven having a 
significant veteran population. In 2015, data showed that the district had in excess 
of 3,000 veterans in receipt of a military pension. When those veterans who live in 
South Kesteven but are not receiving a military pension (through ineligibility or not 
being old enough to claim their military pension) are considered the veteran 
population could be in excess of 4,000. 

 

20



 

 

2.3 The proposal is to operate the scheme through an online application process, but 
with the ability to provide assistance with completing the form in either an electronic 
format or via a hard copy where necessary.  

 
2.4 Entry to the scheme will be marked by the issuing of a card, detailing only a 

surname, service number and expiry date to minimise any data protection issues. 
Forty-six companies, both national and local, joined the scheme in Rutland, which 
were roughly split between:  

- Shopping 
- Sports and Leisure 
- Services 

 - Food, Drink and Accommodation 
 
2.5 The outlets within Rutland can be easily identified as they clearly display a window 

sticker. It is proposed that South Kesteven District Council mirrors this approach. 
The Council will need to recruit business owners within our district to make this 
scheme work, leaving the extent of the discount or incentive available to be put 
forward by the participating outlet. 

 
 

3.0 CHALLENGES EXPERIENCED  

 

3.1 Overall the scheme was positively received in Rutland, however they experienced 

some negative feedback from a person who lived one door away from an eligible 

resident but they themselves fell into another county. This could happen if South 

Kesteven District Council introduced a scheme, given how our district borders both 

Rutland and Peterborough in the South.  

 

3.2 As an authority there is a need to decide upon the documentation necessary and 
a process to verify service.  In relation to residents serving on bases in the district 
(Prince William of Gloucester) applications these can be verified and issued via 
their existing Welfare Team.  However, Veterans, Reservists, the Dispersed and 
Widows will need to have their identification verified (both residential status and 
service).  

 

4.0  COSTS OF THE SCHEME 

 

4.1   There will be a need to set up a web page and online form to enable applications 

to be processed.  

 

4.2   Discount cards and window stickers can either be ordered pre-printed and there                    

will be administrative costs, however given that Rutland have issued approximately 

160 cards in the first year (100 during Phase 1 and 60 in first month of phase 2), 

we are expecting the overall costs of the scheme to be low.  

 

5. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
5.1 No other options were considered. 
 
 
   

21



 

 

6. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1 There will be a resource implication should the scheme be agreed. It is expected 

that costs will be less than £500 for materials.   
 
6.2   We already have the skills and technology in-house to develop the webpage and 

online form. If pre-printed/logo’d cards are purchased the only administrative costs 
will be in relation to staff time to input the details onto the card by hand. 

 
6.3   The Armed Forces Officer has met with Steve Bowyer (Chief Executive of InvestSK) 

to discuss the potential scheme. He has agreed that InvestsK will support 
engagement with local businesses and any of their other, relevant, connections.  

 
7. RISK AND MITIGATION  
 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below: 

 

Category Risk Action / Controls 

Fraud There is the risk that family members may use 
the card rather than the individual for whom the 
card was issued. 
 
It is not considered that any action or controls 
can be introduced by South Kesteven District 
Council, as this is the responsibility of shop 
owners to check.  However, at worse, someone 
is going into an aligned shop and obtaining the 
percentage discount after spending within it. 
Money that they may/may not have previously 
spent.  
 

 
 
8. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 

etc.) 
 
8.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting from 

this report.  Any issues relating to individuals items for consideration will be 
address as required.  

  
9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.  
 
10. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 
10.1 There are minor financial implications arising from the adoption of a discount card 

scheme associated with promotion, printing and card distribution.  These costs can 
be met from existing resources. 

 
 
 

22



 

 

11. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
11.1 The power to take the measures recommended in this report derive from the 

Council’s power under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2000 to do anything it 
considers likely to improve or promote the social or economic wellbeing of its area. 
The power may be exercised for the benefit of all or any persons resident in the 
Council’s area. 

 
12. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES  
 
12.1  Training, FAQ’s and scheme information will be provided to the Customer Service 

team ahead of the launch to ensure enquiries can be supported 
 
12.2 InvestSK sees considerable merit in the scheme and is very happy to promote it to 

their business and other connections.  
 
13.  APPENDICES 
 
13.1 Appendix 1: A proposed scheme  
  
14.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  
14.1 None  

23



APPENDIX 1 

Armed Forces Discount Card – Proposed Scheme 

The Armed Forces Covenant is a promise from the nation to those who serve or who have served, 

and their families, which says we will do all we can to ensure they are treated fairly and not 

disadvantaged in their day-to-day lives. The Armed Forces Covenant relies on the people, 

communities, and businesses of the UK to actively support it in order to make a difference.  

As a recognition of this, South Kesteven District Council is offering an Armed Forces Discount Card. 

The discount on offer will be set by the participating organisation and is therefore not fixed.  

 

The Scheme 

Who Can Apply   

 
The Armed Forces Discount Scheme has been set up to support Service Personnel and their families 

who are already living in or moving to the district of South Kesteven District from elsewhere in the UK 

or overseas.  As well as: 

Dispersed Serving Population: Other service men and women who live in county but are not based at 
Prince William of Gloucester Barracks.  Known as ‘Regular Personnel’, currently serving as members 
of the Naval Service (including the Royal Navy & Royal Marines) Army or Royal Air Force. They could 
be working anywhere in the UK. We have a large number of regular personnel in South Kesteven 
working at locations outside of our borders, such as Kendrew and St Georges Barracks within Rutland,  
The Defence Animal Training Regiment (DATR, previously DAC) in Melton Mowbray and at RAF 
Wittering. 
 
Reservists:  Reservists who live in district but again could be attached to reserve units from all three 
services and anywhere in the UK. Reservists are ‘Volunteer Reservists’, who form the Royal Naval 
Reserve, Royal Marine Reserve, Territorial Army and the Royal Auxiliary Air Force, and ‘Regular 
Reservists’, who comprise the Royal Fleet Reserve, Army Reserve and Royal Air Force Reserve. 
 
Veterans:  A veteran is anybody who has served at least a day in HM Armed Forces, whether as a 
Regular or Reservist. Note this includes the Home Guard and they do not have to have served in 
operational theatre (a ‘war zone’).  
 
Widows:  This will typically be an individual in receipt of a war widows/widowers pension.  

 

Initial Application  

 
There are three ways to apply; 

 Online application process via www.southkesteven.gov.uk  

 Assisted Completion - at our area offices in Stamford, Grantham, Bourne and Market Deeping  

 Hard copy application form 

Online Application Process 

 Applicants click on the link on the SKDC website (on the Armed Forces page, or search ‘Armed 

Forces discount scheme’). 

 Complete the online form and submit 

24



 They will receive an email confirming application 

 The email will also instruct them to collect their card from one of area offices in one of the 

Market Towns after 5 working days, and will tell them to bring ID which is detailed within the 

email and on the Council’s webpage.   

Assisted Completion  

This is to support those who are unable to complete the online form themselves. 

 Applicants visit one of our area offices   

 The Customer Service team will complete the online application on behalf of the client 

 If the applicant has bought ID with them, it can be verified and how the card will be dispatched 

can be agreed.  If the applicant is within one of our Customer Services offices the card can be 

issued to them immediately.   

 

Accepted proof  

Proof of Residency  

 
Must show full name and residential address. We are publicising the following three forms of 

residency ID, however discretion can be used here:   

 Most recent council tax bill/demand or statement 

 Utility bill for supply of gas, electric, water or telephone landline+ 

 Financial statement issued by bank, building society or credit card company      

These documents must be less than three months old. 

(We will accept copies of these documents. However, we reserve the right to ask for originals if 
photocopies are not of adequate quality.) 

 

Proof of Eligibility  

 
Examples of some of the accepted forms of ID are: 

Veterans 

 Military ID Card   

 Defence Discount Service Card  

 Pension Statement 

 Discharge Papers 

 Certificate of service * 

 

*If applicants don’t believe that they have ID they can apply for the ‘Certificate of Service’ on line, 

there is a link on the SKDC website;  

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data

/file/712872/20180530-MOD_SAR_Form_1694.pdf 

 

 

25

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/712872/20180530-MOD_SAR_Form_1694.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/712872/20180530-MOD_SAR_Form_1694.pdf


 Reservist 

 Military ID Card  
 

Dispersed 

 Military ID Card  
 

Widows / Widower 

 Military Widows/ widowers Pension Statement 
 

Card Issuing  

 

 Applicants can pick up their card from one our customer service centres or it can be posted.   

a. Two forms of ID need to be verified and recorded as seen on our system. 

 The Discount Card is completed; Surname, Service Number, Expiry Date (10 years from 

application date) 

 

 

  

26



Guidance for Businesses 

 

South Kesteven District Armed Forces Discount Scheme 

The Armed Forces Discount Scheme is being set up within South Kesteven to support service personnel 
and their families as they relocate to South Kesteven from elsewhere in the UK and oversea, along 
with veterans, dispersed serving population, reservists who live in district, veterans, Widows.  
 
We're looking for local businesses to join the scheme and show their support by offering a discount 
on goods and services for Armed Forces personnel and their families. 

How it works 

Local businesses should get in touch to express an interest in joining the scheme. All we need from 
you is your business name, contact details and a description of the discount or incentive you're willing 
to offer to members of the Armed Forces stationed locally. 

You can do this by filling out the online form. The form is available at www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Participating businesses will receive a window sticker to display on their premises, to show they're 
involved. Plastic membership cards will be issued to eligible Armed Forces personnel and their families 
for them to present when making a purchase, at which point the agreed discount will be applied. 

  

27



Example Business Application Form:  
 
My business would like to support the 
 

South Kesteven Armed Forces Discount Scheme 

 
 

Business Name: 
 

Email address:      Telephone: 
 

Contact Name: 
 

Business Address: 
 

 
Please summarise your discount offer:  
(e.g. 10% discount on all goods purchased or free bottle of wine with dinner for two etc) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed: 
 

 
Position: 

 
Date:  

 
Thank you for your support. Please return this completed form to: 
 
xxxxxxxxxx@southkesteven.gov.uk  
or South Kesteven District Council, St Peters Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ 
If you have any queries, please contact 01476 406080 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In order to comply with the Data Protection Act and the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), 

which came into effect in May 2018, we have to provide you with information about the personal data 

you give to us.  This information is set out below: 

 

 

 

 

 

Sample Card  
Sample Discount Card  

 

                Sample Window Sticker  

 

28

mailto:xxxxxxxxxx@southkesteven.gov.uk


South Kesteven District Council is the data controller for the personal information you may provide.  

Your information will be used so that we can administer the South Kesteven Armed Forces Discount 

Scheme and contact you with any associated queries or information. 

Your personal data may be shared with other teams within the council in order to provide a service to 

you, to ensure our records are kept up to date or otherwise where we are required to do so under 

other legislation.  We may share the data with third parties if we are required by law to do so, this 

may include the Police or Government Agencies.  We will not sell your data or use it for marketing 

purposes without your consent. 

We will keep your data whilst your business is registered with the scheme. This is in accordance with 

current legislation. 

You have the following rights under the GDPR.  Please note not all of these rights apply to all 

processing.  Further details on each right can be found on our website 

(https://www.southkesteven.gov.uk)  

 The right to be informed.    

 The right of access.    

 The right to rectification 

 The right to erasure 

 The right to restrict processing 

 The right to data portability 

 The right to object 

 Rights related to automated decision making, including profiling’ 

 
South Kesteven District Council would like to contact you to provide you with information on other 

Council Services.  

 
If you consent to us contacting you for this purpose please tick here: 

If you are not happy with how the council is handling your personal information you have the right to 

lodge a complaint with the Information Commissioner’s Office. 

 
 

 

 

29

https://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/

	Agenda
	5 Action notes from the meeting held on 21 November 2018
	7 Transformation and Innovation Report
	8 Update from the Armed Forces Officer
	Appendix 1_Armed Forces Discount Card - Scheme proposal


